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The Board is pleased to present the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

 

STATUS 

Advance Housing and Support Limited (‘the Association’) is a registered society under the Co-operative and Community 

Benefit Societies Act 2014 and its governing document forms the rules of the Association. 

The Association is registered with the Homes and Communities Agency as a Registered Provider of Social Housing.   

 

OUR MISSION AND VISION 

We exist as an organisation because we believe passionately in what we do and why we do it.  

Our mission is to enable people of all ages, with a disability or a mental health condition, to realise their individual 
potential as valued citizens. 

Our vision is that, supported by us, people are free to live the life they choose. 

 

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY 

Operating throughout central and southern England, the Group provides housing, support and employment advice to over 

4,300 people each year.  The main operational offices are located in Leicester, Solihull, Hackney and Witney with the 

latter office also being the head office of Advance.  The majority of staff are not office based, but are operational staff 

directly providing services to our customers.  

 

THE GROUP 

The Group consists of the Association and its wholly owned subsidiary KeyRing Living Support Networks (‘KeyRing’). 

KeyRing joined the Advance group on 1 April 2014. 

 

Advance 

The Association provides housing, support and employment advice to more than 5,500 people, most of whom, but not all 
have a learning difficulty or mental health condition. 
 

We operate in a niche market. Our range of services enables customers to live the lifestyle that they choose, and that 
may otherwise not be available to them without us.  
We own and/or manage properties which provide 2,369 homes: 
 

 1,022 homes are occupied on a shared basis 

 776 are self-contained 

 571 are shared ownership. 
 
Our services include community-based support, residential care, intensive support packages for people with complex 
needs, outreach, domiciliary care, brokerage and support to people with personal budgets and personal health budgets 
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KeyRing 

KeyRing is a registered charity which operates nationally to provide housing and support for people with learning 

disabilities. 

KeyRing supports over 1,000 people. Its contracts include, befriending service for people with physical and/or sensory 

disabilities in Walsall, community pioneers scheme for socially isolated older people across Newcastle, Community Links 

Mental Health in Warwickshire,  Community based Hubs and Connex2 peer groups 13 local authorities and mutual 

support community networks in 31 local authorities for people with learning disabilities  or Vulnerable Adults, and a 

mutual support community network with therapeutic support for substance mis-users.  

Advance and KeyRing agreed to join together as they felt that it would enable both organisations to improve the services 

they offer to people and increase the financial security of the businesses. Advance and KeyRing overlap in both the 

geographical areas in which they operate and the services that they provide. 

 
How we work together 

The management of the two organisation are working together to identify and implement cost savings. During the year 

the finance teams have been integrated, as have the customer engagement teams, and KeyRing’s Corsham Street office 

in London has been sublet to a third party and those KeyRing employees based in London now work from Advance’s 

London office. In the previous year the business development teams were integrated. Further opportunities are being 

considered. 

Advance and KeyRing work together on the basis of mutual respect and benefit. This relationship is enshrined in the 

intra-group agreement dated 1st April 2014, under which Advance can appoint a representative to the board of KeyRing 

and has step in rights as set out in the intra-group agreement  

Key Performance Indicators and future plans 

The Group uses a balanced scorecard approach to assess performance, which is reviewed at each Board and 

Committee meeting.  Some of the key measures in the  

The Group uses a ‘balanced scorecard’ approach to performance reporting. The scorecard is considered at each meeting 

of the Board. 

The following key performance indicators are included within the scorecard for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

 Actual Target 

Net surplus as a percentage of turnover, before FRS102 adjustments 1.79% >1% 

Return on capital employed 4.4% >3% 

Percentage of new support schemes performing to budget 50% 100% 

Percentage of rent lost through voids 5.7% <6% 

Agency staff costs as a percentage of total staff costs  5.3% <8% 

Number of support customers employed by Advance 5 5 

Number of complaints resolved within 15 working days 38% >95% 

Percentage of labour turnover 19.1% <20% 

Employment supported outcomes achieved of target 125% 100% 

 

The majority of indicators above demonstrate our performance of our targets. We have not met our target regarding 

response to complaints. 
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In the last quarter of 2015/16 we moved to a new more straight forward procedure for complaints procedure and  we have 
redesigned how we manage complaints, and we have seen an increase in customer satisfaction to 63% by 30 June 2016 
 

In the year we started work on a number of business-wide improvement plans , and we are confident these actions will 

produce improved performance. These included: 

Making sure that we keep our staff and customers safe whilst we deliver high quality services;  

Housing management processes; re-letting process, maintenance, landlord health and safety; 

Handling of complaints’; 

Managing our finances in a more difficult financial environment; 

Making the best use of our business systems; 

 

These plans have now been carried forward and absorbed into our 2016/17 Annual Plan. 

 

The key objectives of the Annual Plan are: 

1 Quality and Safeguarding -  Develop a culture of accountability, that is customer centred, and supported by an 

efficient and robust business assurance function 

2.  Financial Performance -  Achieve the budget and long term financial targets and ensure all services are 

making a financial contribution 

3.  Customer Engagement -  Deliver the Customer Engagement improvement plan, resulting in more meaningful 

customer engagement and genuine co-production 

4.  Housing Management -  Design and deliver a professional housing management service, working in partnership with 

support providers, to improve customer service and satisfaction 

5  Growth and Development  -  Ensure the longer term viability of the Group through the delivery of sustainable services 

and position the organization for the new Health and Work Programme contracts. 

During the coming year the Board and the executive team will be reviewing and updating the corporate strategy for the 

Group for the medium term, against the background of the changes in the economic and financial climate since the plan 

was last reviewed in 2013. 

The Group prepared new long term financial projections following the announcements in the 2015 summer Budget. 

Performance against this plan is being regularly monitored by the Finance Committee and the Board is confident that the 

plan will be achieved. 

REVIEW OF 2015/16 FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Group 

The financial statements for the year have been prepared in accordance with FRS102, and the prior year’s statements 

have been restated. 

The impact of FRS102 on the reported surplus for the year has been: 

Impact of FRS 102 2016 
 

2015 

 
£'000 

 
£'000 

As stated under former UK GAAP 1,671 
 

3,090 

FRS 102 adjustments 
   Increase in depreciation on housing properties (1,444) 

 
(1,244) 

Additional amortisation of Social Housing Grant 1,569 
 

1,434 

Inclusion of SHPS Pension deficit (1,108) 
 

120 

    
As stated under FRS 102 688 

 
3,400 
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 The impact of FRS102 on the reported net assets has been: 

Reserves 

 
 

£'000 

As stated under former UK GAAP 1 April 2015 24,336 

Prior Period Adjustments 
 

Increase in Depreciation on housing properties (13,798) 

Additional amortisation of Social Housing Grant 15,514 

Inclusion of SHPS Pension deficit (3,850) 

  
Reserves 31 March 2015  FRS 102 22,202 

  
Reduction in Reserves at 31st March 2015       2,134 

 

Key Financial Information 

- Income from social housing letting accommodation was £18.3m (2015:£17.8m). In 2015/16 we introduced a 

new charge to customers for the Enhanced Housing Management Service that we provide. This resulted in 

additional income of £635,000.  

- The surplus generated by our social housing activities has reduced. This result includes an additional charge of 

£0.8million for pension deficit contributions.  

- Income from support activities for the year was £13.1m (2015:£14.2m). In each year the deficit on support 

activities is £0.4m. The executive management team continues to work on improving the performance of this 

division of the business including acting to exit from loss making services, whilst mindful of our social 

responsibility and working with Commissioners to ensure that our vulnerable customers are provided with 

adequate support provision.  

 Expenditure on major repairs and improvements totalled £4.0m, of which £0.04m was capitalised.  A further 

£1.0m was spent on routine maintenance. 

- Of our non-social housing activities: 

Our employment division had another strong year with an increased surplus of £347k (up £212k) as a result of 

improved performance with increased sustained job outcomes, making a valuable contribution to the Group’s 

performance. This division has achieved significant financial progress over the recent years, two years ago, in 

2013/14, this operation incurred a deficit of £0.6m.  

 Support provided by KeyRing improved by £291k, principally driven by savings achieved from sharing services 

and resources such as Finance and Business Development with Advance. 

-       Capital expenditure of £6.6m was incurred in acquiring, developing and improving new housing accommodation, 

including capitalised repairs. 

During the year the group’s freehold property in Corsham Street, London was let to a third party on arms length terms 

and on doing so it was reclassified as an investment property. An accounting gain of £2.0m is recorded on revaluing 

this property to fair value (£3.0M) under FRS102. 
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The Group owns 2,260 property units which are recorded in the balance sheet on a historical cost basis, at a net book 

value of £102m (2015:£101m).  

During the year ended 31 March 2016 the Group’s net assets had increased by £2.6 million to £24.9 million  

Included within the above is KeyRing’s result. KeyRing made an operating surplus of £11,000 in 2015/16 compared to a 

deficit of £279,000 in the prior year. 

 

EMPLOYEES 

Advance’s policy is to discuss and consult with employees through the Advance Staff Association The Voice, all matters 
likely to affect employee’s interests.  Information on matters of concern to employees is given through regular electronic 
briefings which aim to achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees.  

We behave in accordance with our values: 

Partnership 
Respect 
Innovation 
Drive  
Efficiency 
 
During March 2016 we were re-accredited by Investors in People (IIP) and we were awarded a bronze accreditation. We 
are pleased with this achievement, and we thank all employees from across the organisation who made time to be 
involved in the re-accreditation process.  

On confirming our accreditation, the IIP assessor, said “Efforts are continually made to ensure effective communication of 

organisational and team objectives, to involve, consult and recognise contributions... People feel there is scope to 

improve their skills beyond their current levels and to help prepare them for future roles....PRIDE Behaviours are well 

understood and embedded.” 

During the year the Board agreed changes to senior management roles. This was to support the delivery of the  

corporate strategy in an efficient way. The changes included the deletion of the post of Director of Marketing and 

Development, and the creation of post of Director of Housing. During the year two Directors left the organisation and 

received compensation for loss of office totalling approximately £29,000. 

Advance’s approach to equality and diversity is centred on the benefits a diverse workforce can bring to the Association 

and encompasses gender, race, disability, religious belief, sexual orientation and age.  Advance has been awarded the 

Two Ticks Disability Symbol and takes appropriate action to meet the five commitments regarding the employment, 

retention, training and career development of disabled people. During the year the Board agreed proposals designed to 

increase the numbers of employees declaring a disability/long term health condition. 

We have taken these other steps during the year, and as a result of the improvement plan work on our culture and 

communication so at improve our approach to our employees and how we help them reach their full potential 

 This will assist us to further develop a culture of mentoring and coaching we have trained the management team 
in Values Based Recruitment, and Values Based Conversations as techniques for recruitment and regular staff 
management.  . 

 An across-organisation apprenticeship programme was developed, which should enable us to recruit more 
apprentices. 

 We launched a new Management Development Programme for new and aspiring managers. 

 Care Certificate qualification was launched for new support staff with no support experience.  
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REVIEW OF THE YEAR 

2015/16 was a busy year for Advance. We opened three flagship supported housing schemes, secured seven good CQC 

ratings for our services, and strengthened our position as a leading light within the learning disability and supported 

housing sector. Our Employment team also extended its reach - supporting even more customers to find and keep work. 

Supported housing 

In March 2016 we appointed a new Director of Housing, Ian Gilders, to provide a dedicated focus, and strong leadership, 

to our housing services. 

In September 2015, we opened Tolvean House in Redruth, a striking looking extra-care scheme for local people with 

learning disabilities. For many of our customers living at Tolvean House, it is the first time they have been able to live on 

their own. Our customers have learnt new independent living skills, built friendships and networks, and now need fewer 

hours of support per week. Tolvean House has made such an impact on the lives of our customers that it has been 

shortlisted for an award at the National Learning Disability Awards. 

We are continuing to grow our services across Cornwall, and are working with Cornwall Council to support the delivery of 

their Housing strategy for vulnerable people. We have also had funding agreed to provide 8 new homes and 9 purchased 

homes in Cornwall during 2016/17. 

In March 2016, we opened another supported housing scheme in Gloucester, called Coombe End. This state of the art 

development replaced an old care home that was no longer fit for purpose.  It provides homes specifically designed for 

customers with a range of needs, including complex needs, in the heart of the community. 

This year, we also completed a new supported housing scheme in Bracknell, for 8 people with learning disabilities. And in 

Luton, work is continuing to progress on our new supported housing scheme, Abigail Court, which will be completed by 

the end of the summer in 2016. 

Capital funding for new supported housing is limited and government policy presents risks to the payment of housing 

benefit. However, we are looking creatively at alternative options to provide more housing, particularly where it might also 

enable us to gain contracts to provide care and support. We are also working hard to ensure that NHS England will allow 

us to recycle existing grants, used to purchase properties, when these properties are no longer required or have reached 

the end of their useful life. 

Shared ownership 

Our commitment to shared ownership continues, and we are pleased that this year, a new mortgage provider began to 

lend to people for our specialist shared ownership scheme.  This will enable more people with long-term disabilities to 

purchase their own homes in the communities where they want to live. 

Success in securing good CQC ratings 

Our determination to drive up standards across the organisation has seen seven out of eight services inspected by the 

Care Quality Commission (CQC) in 2015/16 achieve a ‘good’ rating. Inspectors have noted in their reports that customers 

feel safe and happy being supported by Advance and that staff are caring and committed. With a focus on personalised 

care, we ensure our support is tailored to our customers’ individual needs and aspirations.  

Strengthening our standing in the sector 

This year, we proudly became one of the founding members of Learning Disability Voices, a consortium of learning 

disability organisations campaigning together to champion the learning disability sector and push for crucial policy 

changes. 

Advance has also been instrumental in the setting up of Learning Disability England, a new organisation bringing together 

the Housing and Support Alliance and People First England. As an active member of the National Housing Federation 

(NHF), we are taking part in the Starts at Home campaign, which is focused on persuading the Government to protect the 

future of supported housing. Graeme Jackson, our Head of Investment and Development, was also selected to become a 

member of an NHF working group, focused on exploring the future of funding for supported housing.  
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This year, we played an active part in national awareness weeks, including Learning Disability Week, Mental Health 

Awareness Week, and Disabled Access Day. Many of our services organised events for customers and their families, 

and our Marketing Team developed content to share across our social media channels and website. 

Employment services 

This year, the Employment Team has supported 213 customers to gain employment and 148 customers to sustain 

employment. The Employment Team has also opened a third office this year in Erdington in Birmingham. Officially 

opened by the Mayor of Birmingham, the Employment Team are now able to support even more customers to find and 

keep work. 

Developing strong partnerships across Hackney 

Our Community Aspirations Team, based at our London office, has forged strong networks with local partners, to support 

and promote our community based activities. This year, the team has launched a drama group at the local Arcola 

Theatre, and the music group continues to operate from the local community gardens - Dalston Curve Gardens. In March 

2016, we also launched an art group at Hackney library, and held an exhibition on Disabled Access Day, where 

customers proudly displayed their art work to the public. 

KeyRing moves into Advance London office 

KeyRing and Advance now occupy the same office in Dalston Lane, London. By sharing an office, we have been able to 

identify more opportunities for joint working, such as our collaboratively produced Hate Crime, Mate Crime drama, 

created by, and for, our customers. 

Key Risks 

The key risks facing the Group and its ability to meet the corporate objectives set out in our new corporate strategy have 

been considered by the Group Management Team and Board and incorporated into an updated Corporate Risk Map.   

Controls are identified for all risks and an assessment made as to whether these are satisfactory.  If these controls are 

not satisfactory, an action plan is developed. The Risk Map covers corporate risks and individual business area risks, and 

it is regularly reviewed by the Group Management Team and by the Board and Audit Committee. 

The table below sets out what the Board believe to be the principal risks and uncertainties currently facing the Group and 

the steps we are taking to manage and mitigate them. 
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties 

Risk Risk Description Risk Impact Risk Controls 

Inability to Develop a Competent 

and Productive Workforce 

 

The support sector is facing 

challenging times in the 

current climate. Staff are 

expected to do more with 

less resources which puts 

an extra strain on staff 

morale, 

Reduction in the 

quality of service 

provided and a 

potential 

increase in costs 

through 

increased staff 

sickness rates. 

Balanced Scorecard Reporting                                                                             

Quarterly discussions at GMT                                                                                                                                                                      

External accreditation with IIP, CHAS                                                                                                                          

Annual Performance Reviews                                                                                                                   

L&D Programme including Induction 

 

Inability to Grow & Develop in a 

Sustainable Manner - 

Housing/Support/Employment 

 

Funding available from 

commissioners for 

reprovision of services is 

significantly reduced 

compared to existing 

contracts and changes in 

Housing Finance are 

creating a more difficult 

environment. 

Reduction in 

financial stability 

Robust prioritization and evaluation 

between competing opportunities 

Clear, targeted approach to growth 

Ownership of business development by 

individual Directorates 

Alignment of Housing and Support 

business development activity 

Inability to Meet Legal & 

Regulatory Requirements 

Including Landlord Health & 

Safety 

 

Both main parts of the 

business, Housing and 

Support, are heavily 

regulated sectors. It is 

important that Advance 

ensures it complies with all 

key legislation. 

Regulatory 

downgrade and 

reputational 

damage; 

customers 

receive poor 

quality of service 

Annual self assessment by Director of 

Resources against Governance and 

Financial Viability Standard 

Monitoring of regulatory environment by 

Director of Resources and wider 

Resources Team 

Programme of internal Audit Reviews 

Retention of the Quality Improvement 

Manager to ensure CQC compliance 

 

Inability to Deliver Appropriate 

Services to Customers with 

Complex Needs  

 

The quality of services are 

key to our customers well 

being and is key to our core 

mission. The qualities of 

our services are key 

regulatory measures in 

Housing and in Support so 

is key to the organisations 

continued success. 

Poor service 

experienced by 

our customers. 

Regulatory 

downgrading. 

Reputational 

damage.  

Criminal 

prosecution. 

Reporting against KPIs                                                                                                                                                         

Internal management checks, auditing 

and testing of practice                                                                                                                                                  

Reporting against customers' outcomes 

using STAR                                                                                                                                               

Internal Review of Support Plans, Risk 

Assessments and Delivery Models                                                                                                                                           

Customer feedback                                                                                                                                                     

Regulatory inspections                                                                                                                                                          

 

Inability to Deliver Consistent 

Quality Services and Keep 

Customers Safe 

 

Failure to meet landlord 

health and safety 

requirements. 

Failure to prevent 

safeguarding incidents. 

Services are poorly rated 

by regulatory inspections 

Harm to 

individual 

customers 

Reputational 

damage 

Regulatory action 

 Incident and Safeguarding reporting                                                                 

Regular review of safeguarding incidents                                                                                                                             

Regular audit of practice including self 

audit, peer audit & management audit 

and Internal Audit                                                                                                                              

-  Complaints monitoring                                                                                                                                         

-  Whistle blowing and “I'm Not Proud” 

reporting 
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The principal risks are primarily inward facing. Wider strategic risks are included within the risk register, which is kept 

under review to ensure that it continues to meet Advance’s needs. External risks which are key to mainstream, non-

specialist, and developing associations are also included within the Risk Register: Including: 

- Introduction of Universal Credit – whilst vulnerable adults are excluded, at present, from the impact of Universal 
Credit, and it is expected that housing benefit for these individuals will continue to be paid directly to landlords, 
we continue to keep this under review;  

- The impact of the wider economic climate, including political factors such as further welfare cuts; social factors, 
such as the move to individual rather than shared accommodation for customers; and economic factors, such as 
the further reductions in loan finance availability. 

- Availability of Loan Finance. At present Advance has a sufficient cash reserve for the medium term. However 
early negotiations are underway to secure loan facilities that will be required for future development. 

 

Leaving the European Union 

The UK has voted to leave the EU.  It is too soon to predict the impact of this on the UK, the economy in general, the 

Social Housing sector as a whole nor specifically on Advance & KeyRing. Developments are being closely monitored and 

the National Housing Federation (NHF)’s work on the possible consequences on leaving the EU is a useful resource in 

this respect. 

Going concern 

Each year the Group prepares long term financial projections. The Board considers these projections, and based upon 

those considerations the Board is confident that that the Group is a going concern.  

GOVERNANCE  

Advance regularly monitors compliance with the NHF Code of Governance and has adopted the 2015 Code of Conduct 

for individual Board members. Advance is, fully compliant with the Code of Governance 2015. 

Advance complies with the HCA’s Governance and Viability Standard code of practice and has agreed to adopt the NHF 

Merger Code which is a codification of good governance should Advance receive merger offers from other registered 

providers. 

At 31 March 2016 the Board comprised nine non-executive members and one executive member who are responsible for 

managing the affairs of Advance.  The Board members have a wide range of experience, including their own working 

experience in the professional, commercial and public sectors.     

The non-executive Board members are elected for three year terms at the Annual General Meeting.  Each member must 

step down after each three year period, but is immediately available for re-election.  The maximum consecutive term of 

elected office is nine years. The Board conducts an annual skills audit and new appointments to the Board are matched 

against requirements identified in this audit. 

When seeking to appoint new Board members, Advance advertises the position through a number of national outlets, as 

well as using all networking opportunities available.  Particular attention is paid to attracting applicants from diverse 

backgrounds and communities (for example Black Minority Ethnic groups) and to filling any knowledge and skills gaps 

within the current make-up of the Board.  The Board has, and regularly updates, a Board Diversity Policy. 

The Chair carries out a full induction for non-executive Board members and, following initial meetings with the Chief 

Executive; new Board members are invited to the general Induction Day for Advance staff.  This addresses organisational 

structure, culture, diversity, values, policies and procedures.   Non-executive and Executive Board members have an 

annual appraisal and regular reviews of their performance. 
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Advance’s governance structure is as follows:- 

 Group Board (comprising non-executive and executive members) 
The Board retains ultimate responsibility for determination of the overall strategy, values and ethos of the 

Advance group and association, and for decisions that have significant implications for the Advance Group as a 

whole. 

 KeyRing Board 
The KeyRing Board provides strategic direction to KeyRing. One member of the Board of Advance is also a 

member of KeyRing’s Board. 

 Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee consists of three non-executive Board members and one co-optee; this committee 

provides additional scrutiny and assurance to the Board over the Group’s systems of internal control, as set out 

below. 

 

 Finance Committee 
The Finance Committee consists of four Board members and one co-optee; the Committee provides scrutiny and 

challenge over the financial performance of the Group.  

 

 Remuneration Committee 
This committee meets on an ad hoc basis to consider executive remuneration.  

 

 Group Management Team 
The Group Management Team, which consists of the Group’s operational directors, has responsibility for the day 

to day running of Advance, and for implementing the strategies agreed by the Board. 

All delegations, lines of responsibility and levels of authorisation are set out in the organisation’s Standing Orders. 

During the year we introduced payment for all board members; previously the only position which received payment was 

that of the Chair of the Board. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Board has overall responsibility for the systems of internal controls and the management of risk throughout Advance. 

The Audit Committee is responsible to the Board for reviewing the systems and reporting on their effectiveness.  The 

system of internal controls focuses on significant risks that would threaten Advance’s ability to meet its objectives. 

The Board recognises that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance or eliminate all risk.  The 

systems of internal control are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives 

and it is recognised by the Board that these systems provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material 

mis-statement or loss, and the development of the system is a continuing process.  The systems of internal control also 

exist to give reasonable assurance about the preparation and reliability of financial and operational information and the 

safeguarding of the Advance assets and interests. 

Fraud 

Advance does not tolerate fraud and action is taken to reduce fraud through the control systems.  Our Anti-Fraud Policy 

was revised in February 2016 and work is ongoing to monitor and enhance the control environment throughout the 

Association in order to reduce the risk of fraud. 

All instances of identified fraud, and other losses which potentially could have been the result of fraud, are reported to the 

Audit Committee. 

The process adopted by the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control, together with some of 

the key elements of the control framework includes: 
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Risk management 

Board and Group Management Team members are aware of and experienced in risk management techniques and have 

fully embraced the development of the risk management framework.  The Board has adopted a risk-based approach to 

internal controls that is embedded within the normal management and governance process.  This approach includes the 

regular evaluation of the nature and extent of risks to which the Association is exposed and is consistent with the 

principles of good governance outlined in the NHF’s Excellence in Governance Code (2010). 

Identification and evaluation of key risks 

Management responsibility has been clearly defined for the identification, evaluation and control of significant risk. This is 

regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. The Board reviews and determines the top risks facing the organisation 

and there is a formal and ongoing process of management review in each area of the Association’s activities.  This 

process is co-ordinated through a regular reporting framework by the Board and Audit Committee.  The Group 

Management Team regularly considers reports on significant risks facing Advance and the Chief Executive is responsible 

for reporting to the Board any significant changes affecting key risks. 

Monitoring and corrective action 

A process of regular management reporting on control issues provides a hierarchical assurance to successive levels of 

management and to the Board.  This includes a rigorous procedure for ensuring that corrective action is taken in relation 

to any significant control issues, particularly those with a material impact on the financial statements. 

Control environment and control procedures 

The Board retains responsibility for a defined range of issues covering strategic, operational, financial and compliance 

matters including Treasury Strategy and major new investment projects. This responsibility is supported by Advance’s 

policies with regard to the quality, integrity and ethics of its employees.  It is supported by a framework of policies with 

which employees must comply.  These cover issues such as delegated authority, segregation of duties, accounting, 

Treasury Management, health and safety, data and asset protection and fraud prevention and detection. 

Information and financial reporting system 

Financial reporting procedures include detailed budgets for the year ahead and forecasts for subsequent years.  These 

are reviewed and approved by the Board.   The Board also regularly reviews KPIs to assess progress towards the 

achievement of key business objectives, targets and outcomes. 

The internal control framework and the risk management process are subject to regular review by the Audit Committee 

which is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Board.  The Audit Committee considers internal control 

and risk at each of its meetings during the year.   

The Board has received reports from the Chief Executive, Director of Resources and the Audit Committee and has 

reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control for the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of 

signing these financial statements.  It has reviewed these reports and approved the actions needed to maintain and 

improve the effectiveness of the risk management and control process. 

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced 

by Advance.  The process has been in place throughout the year under review and is regularly reviewed by the Board. 

Internal Audit  

The Audit Committee appointed Mazars to provide an independent internal audit function to improve the system of 

internal control. Mazars are carrying out a risk based programme of audits, which commenced in August 2013. As a 

result of each audit a plan of actions is created. Progress on the internal audit programme, and the progress on the 

resulting actions, is kept under scrutiny by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board.  
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Value for Money 

Advance has a robust approach to Value for Money (VFM). Our full approach to VFM can be viewed in our VFM self 

assessment report in the Publications section of our Website http://www.advanceuk.org/. 

The Board agreed our VFM Strategy in 2013, and this will be reviewed and re-considered during 2016/17. The overview 

of our approach to VfM as set out in our Strategy is: 

We are committed to providing excellent services, aligned to our customers’ needs and priorities, whilst operating with 

limited financial resources. In seeking to obtain the best possible VfM throughout the organisation, we recognise that VfM 

is not a discrete function, nor is it solely restricted to financial considerations - VfM has to feature in everything we do.  

Our strategic aim is to strike a balance between minimising costs and achieving maximum social value, where social 

value is measured by:  

Service quality  

Social and economic benefits  

Environmental benefits  

Financial return  

 

We will use our resources efficiently, effectively and economically to achieve our strategic aims, which are:  

Our Customers – placing individuals at the heart of all we do  

Our Geography – One Advance, joining up our services and ways of working  

Our Services – ensuring our continued viability as an organisation.  

Included within our ‘balanced scorecard’ approach to performance reporting are VfM measures. The scorecard is 

considered at each meeting of the Board. 

Significant purchasing decisions, proposals to enter new contracts to provide services and proposals to invest in housing 

assets are justified by a business case. That case includes the return, both social and economic, that the proposal will 

generate. Proposals to invest in housing assets, and to make significant changes to our support contracts, are 

considered by members of our executive management team.  

In addition to the approach set out above to new business we are committed to ensuring sustainability in the services that 

we deliver, in an increasingly pressured area, with local authority cuts to budgets, We have therefore ceased to provide 

services under contracts where we have been asked to take unsustainable cuts to the income we receive, and we are 

ensuring that any new business is taken on at appropriate rates. We are also actively managing the financial 

performance of our services to increase occupancy rates and are reviewing our costs. 

Our self assessment also includes a comparison of our costs to deliver services, in absolute terms, over time and 

comparisons with our peers. 

We have achieved savings of £860,000 in 2015/16 in addition to the £951,000 previously reported in the 2014/15 Self 

assessment. Our target savings for 2016/17 are £1,120,000. 
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Key actions which have generated savings in 2016/17 include: 

 Savings arising from Revised approach to how we support the front line services, including: 

-  Rationalisation of our approach to business development 

 - Changes in how we deliver ICT support to users throughout the Group 

-  Making better use of our office space to enable space to be sub-let 

-  Integrating teams to deliver support functions across the Group 

 Savings from the ongoing action to reduce the cost of responsive repairs through working with our contractors  

 Historical actions on restructuring staffing to deliver support services; these actions deliver ongoing savings 

We are pleased that our contracts for employment activities were extended by the Department of Work and Pensions and 

that these activities generated a surplus of £347,000. This is a considerable improvement on the surplus of £135,000 in 

2014/15. This performance is results driven with an increased level of sustained job outcomes arising in 2014/15 and 

2015/16.  

The environment has continued to be challenging for our support services. Income has fallen by just over £1 million to 

£13.1 million which was due to the services we ceased to provide as some services became increasingly financially non-

viable. We are fully aware of the issues within this area of our business and continue to review and act to improve the 

return generated by our support services. We apply this approach to both existing services and new services that we 

agree to deliver.  

We have provided 37 new rented properties this year including converting a commercial property into supporting units 

and replaced a no longer fit for purpose property with new modern accommodation. We have plans to develop a further 

38 new units which will be more fitting with modern customer expectations and replacing those that are costly to maintain.  

In 2015/16 we have invested £5.7 million in developing new housing units as follows;  

37 new completed rented homes, with a further 23 under development  £3.9 million 

22 Shared ownership homes  £1.8 million 

Over 30% of our investment is in shared ownership properties. We aim to enable our customers to live as independently 

as possible, and by investing in shared ownership properties we are able to offer customers the opportunity to own their 

own home.  

In the year we have also disposed of a number of properties which were no longer suitable for the needs of our 

customers and/or the commissioners of services and hence were not sustainable.  

We undertook a major review of our service charges, and this identified that due to the additional work carried out by our 

Housing Team, over and above those that would be provided to a general needs tenant, we could validly charge an 

Enhanced Housing Management charge. We introduced this charge with effect from 1 April 2015, and it generated 

additional income of £518,000 in 2015/16 (net of commission payable). We plan to utilise some of this income to expand 

our Housing team in 2016/17 to allow for better regional coverage. 

The HCA has communicated with RP’s regarding the Cost per Unit to deliver services. Our costs are greater than the 
average costs collated from the data gathered within the HCA Global Accounts.  
 
We provide supported housing, and, as the HCA has identified a high proportion of supported housing is correlated with 
higher CPU. The VFM Self Assessment further considers our CPU including a comparison to other RP’s which we 
consider to be similar to ourselves in size and scope of services that we provide. 
 
The Board of Advance believes that the Group complies with the HCA’s Value for Money Standard and the following 
table demonstrates how: 
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Specific expectations of the HCA Examples of how Advance is meeting these expectations 

1.1 Registered providers shall: 
 

Have a robust approach to making 

decisions on the use of resources to deliver 

the provider’s objectives, including an 

understanding of the trade-offs and 

opportunity costs of its decisions 

Our corporate strategy, VfM strategy and our One Advance and asset 

management strategy are designed to: 

Target resources on the areas and services we have decided to 

prioritise 

Take tough decisions to withdraw in a planned way from contracts that 

are no longer financially viable for us 

Advance is starting to see the benefits of this through disposing of loss-

making homes and contracts, which are giving us more capacity to 

invest in the services our customers want and need. 

Understand the return on its assets, and 

have a strategy for optimising the future 

returns on assets – including rigorous  

appraisal of all potential options for 

improving VfM including the potential 

benefits in alternative delivery models – 

measured against the organisation’s 

purpose and objectives 

We have an in-depth asset management strategy based around the 

NPVs of our homes and we are implementing it 

We have identified homes with low NPVs outside of our core 

geographical areas that we are disposing of 

This will enable us both to save money and provide higher quality 

support to our residents in our heartlands areas 

We have brought KeyRing into Advance which will help us to deliver 

support to more people in a cost-effective way 

Have performance management and 

scrutiny functions which are effective at 

driving and delivering improved VfM 

performance 

We know that we have some high cost services 

We have been bearing down on these costs related to these services by 

re-tendering contracts, concentrating on our core areas and 

restructuring under our One Advance programme 

Our residents have been fully involved in scrutinising our services and in 

procurement exercises 

This has helped us to save £1,811,000 in the last three years, and we 

are targeting £1,120,000 in future recurring savings. 

It is important to note that we have preserved or improved our 

satisfaction ratings whilst saving money 

Understand the costs and outcomes of 

delivering specific services and which 

underlying factors influence these costs and 

how they do so 

We understand our costs and outcomes by: 

Benchmarking with HouseMark, SPBM and SHIFT 

Testing our costs against the market through procurement exercises 

Assessing customer satisfaction through customer survey 
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1.2 Registered providers’ boards shall 

demonstrate to stakeholders how they 

are meeting this standard. As part of that 

process, on an annual basis, they will 

publish a robust self-assessment which 

sets out in a way that is transparent and 

accessible to stakeholders how they are 

achieving VfM in delivering their purpose 

and objectives. The assessment shall: 

 

Enable stakeholders to understand the 

return on assets measured against the 

organisation’s objectives 

We have set out clearly how we assess our: 

Returns on homes at the unit level through our asset management 

strategy and NPV-based option appraisals of all homes 

Our social returns through the new VfM metrics we have developed 

based upon the KPI’s of the business alongside our new balanced 

scorecard  

Set out the absolute and comparative costs 

of delivering specific services 

We have set out where we do well and less well against our peer group 

within section 4 of this self assessment. We have also set out how the 

cost of our services has changed over time, and by reference to the 

data contained within the HCA Global Accounts data for 2014/15.  

Our management costs compare favourably with our peers but there is 

work to do to reduce our maintenance costs. We are reviewing our 

highest cost properties in line with our asset management strategy and 

making decisions on those in which we need to reinvest. We are also 

undertaking a review of our maintenance activities as part of our 

organisation wide improvement plan. 

 

Evidence the VfM gains that have been and 

will be made and how these have and will 

be realised over time 

We saved £1,811,000 in the last three years and we and are targeting 

£1,120,000 in future recurring savings. 

This was achieved by for example tendering out services, collective 

purchasing, re-structuring management and offices, disposing of poorer 

performing schemes and reviewing where we can make efficiencies 

within how we operate. 

In 2016/17 our objectives are to continue to make decisions about which 

schemes we need to exit and which properties we need to sell or cease 

to lease from third parties, introduce further business system 

developments to produce improvements in the efficiency of staff, 

explore further savings arising from KeyRing having joined the Group. 
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PUBLIC BENEFIT ENTITY 

As a public benefit entity, Advance has applied the public benefit entity ‘PBE’ prefixed paragraphs of FRS102. 

INFORMATION FOR AUDITORS  

The board members who held office at the date of approval of this board report confirm that, so far as they are each 

aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the association’s auditors are unaware; and each board member 

has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a board member to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 

information and to establish that the association’s auditors are aware of that information. 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

The board confirms that this Board Report has been prepared in accordance with the principles set out in Paragraph 4.7 

of the 2014 Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) for Registered Social Housing Providers. 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 29 September 2016. 

AUDITORS 

Beever and Struthers have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution to re-appoint them as auditors 

will be proposed to the Association’s Annual General meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Board Report for the year ended 31 March 2016 



 Advance Housing and Support Limited 
  

Page 21 of 53 

 
 

 

Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities in Respect of the Accounts 
 
The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and registered social housing legislation require the 
Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
association and of the Income and Expenditure for the period of account. 
 
In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to: 

 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently, 

 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, 

 State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 
and explained in the financial statements, and 

 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
association will continue in business. 

 
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the association and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Co-
operative and Community Benefit Society Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group 
Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private 
Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. It has general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the 
assets of the association and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

 
 

  

Board Report for the year ended 31 March 2016 



 Advance Housing and Support Limited 
  

Page 22 of 53 

 
 

 
 

We have audited the financial statements of Advance Housing and Support Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 
on pages 20 to 49.  The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including FRS102, 
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. 
 
This report is made solely to the Association’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 87 of the Co-operative 
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
Association’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Association 
and the Association’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective Responsibilities of the Board and the Auditor 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Board’s Responsibilities set out on page 18, the Board is responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an 
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland).  Those standards require us to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC’s) Ethical Standards for 
Auditors. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or 
error.  This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Association’s 
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by the Board; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.  In addition, we read 
all the financial and non-financial information in the Strategic Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited 
financial statements.  If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the 
implications for our report. 
 
Opinion on financial statements 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

 

 Give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and Association’s affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of the 
Group’s and the Association’s surpluses for the year then ended; and 

 Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and  

 Have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the 
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. 

 
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements;  
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies 
Act 2014 require us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have 
not been received from branches not visited by us, or 

 The parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or  

 Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or 

 We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 
Beever and Struthers  
Chartered Accountants and 
Statutory Auditors 
St George’s House  
215 – 219 Chester Road 
Manchester 
M15 4JEDate:  
28

th
 July 2016 
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 Notes  
Year ended 
31 Mar 2016 

Restated 
Year Ended 

31 Mar 2015 
  Group  

£’000 
Association 

£’000 
Group 
£’000 

Association 
£’000 

Turnover 2 37,097 32,505 37,461 32,956 
Operating expenditure 2 (36,409) (31,828) (36,384) (31,599) 
      
Operating surplus  688 677 1,077 1,357 
      
      
Gain on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment  

 
6 

375 375 21 21 

Investment Income  159 70 70 66 
Interest and financing costs 7 (555) (555) (613) (614) 
Increase in valuation of investment properties  1,984 - - - 
Surplus on KeyRing joining the group  - - 2,845 - 
      
Surplus before and after tax 8 2,651 567 3,400 830 

Total comprehensive income for the year  2,651 567 3,400 830 

      
 
 

The financial statements on pages 23 to 52 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on the 28
th
 July 2016 

and were signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

The consolidated and parent results relate wholly to continuing activities and the notes on pages 23 to 52 

form an integral part of these accounts. 
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The financial statements on pages 23 to 52 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 28
th
 July 2016 

and were signed on its behalf by: 
 
 

   
Year ended 
31 Mar 2016 

Restated 
Year Ended 
31 Mar 2015 

  
Notes 

Group  
£’000 

Association 
£’000 

Group 
£’000 

Association 
£’000 

Fixed assets      

Tangible fixed assets 12 102,028 101,749 100,587 99,267 
Fixed asset investments 13 3,000 - - - 
      

  105,028 101,749 100,587 99,267 
Current assets      
Trade and other debtors 14 4,155 3,627 5,110 4,389 
Current asset investments  7,071 6,536 5,153 4,521 
Cash and cash equivalents  6,610 5,920 7,353 7,230 

  17,836 16,083 17,616 16,140 
 

Less: Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 15 (11,936) (11,558) (11,847) (11,621) 
 
Net current assets 

 
5,900 4,525 5,769 4,519 

      
Total assets less current liabilities  110,928 106,274 106,356 103,786 
      
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one 

year 

 
16 

(86,075) (86,075) (84,154) (84,154) 

      
      
Total net assets  24,853 20,199 22,202 19,632 

      
Reserves      
Non-equity share capital 20 - - - - 
Income and expenditure reserve  24,823 20,199 22,169 19,632 
Restricted reserve 21 30 - 33 - 

  24,853 20,199 22,202 19,632 

Total reserves      

 

Statement of Financial Position 
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 Group  Association 
      
 Income and 

expenditure 
reserve 

£’000 

 
Restricted 

reserve  
£’000 

Total  
£’000 

 Income and 
expenditure 

reserve 
£’000 

      
Balance at 1 April 2014 as originally stated 21,246 - 21,246  21,246 
Prior year adjustment (2,444) - (2,444)  (2,444) 

      
Balance as at 1 April 2014 as restated 18,802 - 18,802  18,802 
      
Surplus from Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 

3,400 - 3,400 
 

830 

Transfer of restricted expenditure from unrestricted reserve 
 

(33) 33 - 
 

- 

      
Balance at 31 March 2015 22,169 33 22,202  19,632 
      
Surplus from Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 

2,651  2,651 
 

567 

Transfer of restricted expenditure from unrestricted reserve 
 

3 (3) - 
 

- 

      
Balance at 31 March 2016 24,823 30 24,853  20,199 

 
The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these accounts. 
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Year ended 

31 Mar 2016  
£’000 

Restated 
Year Ended 

31 Mar 2015 
£’000 

    
Net cash generated from operating activities (see 
Note i) 

 3,929 2,109 

    
Cash flow from investing activities    
Purchase of tangible fixed assets  (6,563) (6,075) 
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets  1,990 1,538 
Grants received  3,140 2,618 
Grants repaid  (291) (896) 
Increase in current asset investments  (1,916) (3,150) 
Investment income received  159 66 

  448 (3,790) 
    
Cash flow from financing activities    
Interest paid  (485) (500) 
New secured loans  - 2,846 
Repayment of borrowings  (706) (678) 
Cash arising when KeyRing joined the group  - 1,085 
    
Net change in cash and cash equivalents  (743) (1,037) 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  7,353 8,390 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  6,610 7,353 

    
Note i     
Cash flow from operating activities    
    
Surplus for the year  2,651 3,434 
 
Adjustments for non-cash items: 

 
  

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets  2,911 2,778 
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other debtors  955 54 
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other creditors  (110) (28) 
Pension costs less contributions payable  1,474 (120) 
Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals  1,195 1,519 
 
Adjustments for investing or financing activities: 

 
  

Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets  (1,990) (1,538) 
Government grants utilised in the year  (1,569) (1,545) 
Interest payable  555 500 
Interest income received  (159) (66) 
Surplus when KeyRing joined the group  - (2,879) 
Increase in value of investment property   (1,984) - 
Net cash generated from operating activities  

3,929 2,109 

    
    
    
    
    

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these accounts.  
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Legal Status 

Advance Housing and Support Limited is incorporated in England under the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014 and is registered with the Homes and Communities Agency as a Private Registered Provider of 
Social Housing. The registered office is. 2 Witan Way, Witney, OX28 6FH 
 
The group comprises the following entities: 
 
Name Incorporation Registered/.Non-registered 
Advance Housing and Support Limited Co-operative and Community 

Benefit Societies Act 2014 
Registered 

KeyRing Living Support Networks Companies act 2006  Non-registered 
 
1. Principal Accounting Policies 

 
Basis of Accounting 
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and the Statement of Recommended Practice for registered 
housing providers: Housing SORP 2014.  The Group is required under the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969 to prepare consolidated Group accounts. 
 
The financial statements comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-
operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration 
Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.  The accounts 
are prepared on the historical cost basis of accounting as modified by the revaluation of housing properties and 
are presented in sterling £, rounded to the nearest £1,000.  
 
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with FRS102 as it applies for the first time 
to the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
  
The Group transitioned from previous UK GAAP to FRS102 as at 1 April 2014.  An explanation of how the 
transition to FRS102 has affected the reported financial position and performance, as well as the exemptions 
taken on transition, is given in note 25. 
 
The Association is a public benefit entity and has applied the Public Benefit Entity sections of FRS 102. 
 
Parent company disclosure exemptions 
In preparing the separate financial statements of the parent company, advantage has been taken of the following 
disclosure exemptions available in FRS102: 
 

 No cash flow statement has been presented for the parent company, 

 No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of the key management personnel of the 
parent company as their remuneration is included in the totals for the group as a whole. 

 
Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of Advance Housing and Support Limited and its 
subsidiary undertaking as at 31 March 2016 using the acquisition method of accounting as required.  Where the 
acquisition method is used, the results of subsidiary undertakings are included from the date of acquisition, being 
the date the Group obtains control. 

  

Going concern 
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes an ability to 
continue operating for the foreseeable future.  The Government’s announcements in July 2015 impacting on the 
future income of the Group have led to a reassessment of the Group’s business plan as well as an assessment 
of imminent or likely future breach in borrowing covenants.  No significant concerns have been noted and we 
consider it appropriate to continue to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.  

  

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2016 201620120162012016 
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1. Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

 
Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the 
amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the year.  However, the nature of estimation means that 
actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.  The following judgements (apart from those involving 
estimates) have had the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
 
a. Development expenditure. The Group capitalises development expenditure in accordance with the 

accounting policy described on page 27.  In determining whether a project is likely to cease, management 
monitors the development and considers if changes have occurred that result in impairment. 

 
b. Categorisation of housing properties The Group has undertaken a detailed review of the intended use 

of all housing properties.  In determining the intended use, the Group has considered if the asset is held 
for social benefit or to earn commercial rentals.  

c. Impairment.  The Group has identified a cash generating for impairment assessment purposes at a 
property scheme level. 

 
Other key sources of estimation and assumptions: 
 
a. Tangible fixed assets.  Other than investment properties, tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their 

useful lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate.  The actual lives of the assets and 
residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors.  In re-assessing 
asset lives, factors such as technological innovation, product life cycles and maintenance programmes are 
taken into account.  Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the 
remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. 
 

b. Revaluation of investment properties.  The Group carries its investment property at fair value, with 

changes in fair value being recognised in profit and loss.  The Group engaged independent valuation 
specialists to determine fair value at the 31 March 2016.  The valuer used a valuation technique based on 
open market value.   

 
c. Pension and other post-employment benefits.  The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other 

post-employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations.  The actuarial valuation involves 
making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension 
increases.  Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and the long term nature of 
these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.  In determining the appropriate discount 
rate, management considers the interest rates of corporate bonds in the respective currency with at least 
AA rating, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit 
obligation.  The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality, and those having excessive credit 
spreads are removed from the population bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that 
they do not represent high quality bonds.  The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables 
for the specific sector.  Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future 
inflation rates for the respective sector.  Further details are given in note 12. 

 
 

Acquisition accounting 
Transfer of Undertakings to Advance are reflected in the financial statements from the effective date, the 
equivalent of the fair value of the net assets being shown as an increase in the value of reserves.  

 
Turnover and revenue recognition 

 
 Turnover represents rental income receivable, amortised capital grant, revenue grants from local authorities and 

the Homes and Communities Agency, income from the sale of shared ownership and other properties developed 
for outright sale and other income and are recognised in relation to the period when the goods or services have 
been supplied. 
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Turnover is recognised in the financial statements as follows 
 
Rent 
Rental income is recognised when the property is available for let, net of voids, on a time apportioned basis, in 
accordance with the terms of the tenancy agreements. 

 
First Tranche Shared Ownership 
Proceeds of first tranche sales at date of completion to Shared Owner. 
  
Support income and costs including Supporting People income and costs 
Support contract income received from Administering Authorities is accounted for as Support income in the Turnover as 
per note 2.  The related support costs are matched against this income in the same note.  Support charges included in 
the rent are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income from social housing lettings note 3 and matched against 
the relevant costs. 
 
Service charges 
Service charge income and costs are recognised on an accruals basis.  The Group operates both fixed and variable 
service charges on a scheme by scheme basis in full consultation with residents.  Where variable service charges are 
used the charges will include an allowance for the surplus or deficit from prior years, with the surplus being returned to 
residents by a reduced charge and a deficit being recovered by a higher charge.  Until these are returned or recovered 
they are held as creditors or debtors in the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
Where periodic expenditure is required a provision may be built up over the years, in consultation with the residents; until 
these costs are incurred this liability is held in the Statement of Financial Position within long term creditors. 
  
Employment  
Contractual management fees over the life of the contract, employment outcome income as clients enter work and 
sustained employment income as clients complete the relevant time period and this income becomes claimable. 
 
Fees 
Recognised on a work done basis. 
 
Grants 
As the associated expenditure is incurred, provided that the conditions for receipt have been matched and there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant is receivable. 
 
Donations 
Recognised on a receipts basis. 
 
Loan interest costs 
Loan interest costs are calculated using the effective interest method of the difference between the loan amount at initial 
recognition and amount of maturity of the related loan. 
 
Value Added Tax 
The Group charges VAT on some of its income and is able to recover part of the VAT it incurs on expenditure.  All 
amounts disclosed in the accounts are inclusive of VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Group and not recoverable. 
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Tangible fixed assets and depreciation 
 

Housing properties 
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.  Donated land/assets or assets acquired at 
below market value from a government source, i.e. local authority, are included as a liability in the Statement of Financial 
Position at the fair value less consideration paid. 
 
Housing properties under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated.  These are reclassified as housing 
properties on practical completion of construction. 
 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
 
Where a housing property comprises two or more major components with substantially different useful economic lives 
(UELs), each component is accounted for separately and depreciated over its individual UEL.  Expenditure relating to 
subsequent replacement or renewal of components is capitalised as incurred. 
 
The association depreciates freehold housing properties by component on a straight-line basis over the estimated UELs 
of the component categories. 
 
UELs for identified components are as follows: 
 

Core building and roof    60 years 
  
Electrical systems    40 years 
  
Plumbing and heating    30 years 
  
Bathrooms     15 years 
 
Kitchens, boilers, lifts and door entry systems 10 years 
 
Special adaptations    10-20 years 
  
Windows and doors     20 years 
 
The association depreciates housing properties held on long term leases in the same manner as freehold properties, 
except where the unexpired lease term is shorter than the longest component life envisaged, in which case the unexpired 
term of the lease is adopted as the useful economic life of the relevant component category. 
 
Depreciation is charged on other tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis over the expected economic useful lives 
which are as follows: 
 
Housing property furniture and equipment  3 years     
 
Computer equipment    2-5 years 
 
Office furniture and equipment   4-5 years 
 
Freehold office premises    50 years 
 
Leasehold office premises   the life of the lease 
 
 
Low cost home ownership properties 
The costs of low cost home ownership properties are split between current and fixed assets on the basis of the first 
tranche portion.  The first tranche portion is accounted for as a current asset and the sale proceeds shown in  
turnover. The remaining element of the shared ownership property is accounted for as a fixed asset and subsequent 
sales treated as sales of fixed assets. 
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 Capitalisation of interest and administration costs 
 Interest on loans financing development is capitalised up to the date of the completion of the scheme and only when 

development activity is in progress. 
 
 Administration costs relating to development activities are capitalised only to the extent that they are incremental to the 

development process and directly attributable to bringing the property into their intended use. 
 
 Property managed by agents 
 Where the Group carries the majority of the financial risk on property managed by agents, income arising from the 

property is included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Account. 
 
 Where the agency carries the majority of the financial risk, income includes only that which relates solely to the Group. 
 
 In both cases, the assets and associated liabilities are included in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position. 

 

 Reverse premiums and similar incentives received on leases to enter into operating lease agreements are released to 
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the term of the lease. 
 
Investment property 
Investment property includes commercial and other properties not held for the social benefit of the Group.  Investment 
property is measured at cost on initial recognition, which includes purchase cost and any directly attributable expenditure, 
and subsequently at fair value at the reporting date.  Fair value is determined annually by external valuers and derived 
from the current market rents, adjusted if necessary for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific 
asset.  No depreciation is provided.  Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income. 
 
Current asset investments 
Current asset investments include cash and cash equivalents invested for periods of more than 90 days.  They are 
recognised initially at cost and subsequently at fair value at the reporting date.  Any change in valuation between 
reporting dates is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 

Short-term debtors and creditors 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within one year are recorded at transaction 
price.  Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the income statement in other operating expenses. 
 
Non-government grants 
Grants received from non-government sources are recognised under the performance model.  If there are no specific 
performance requirements the grants are recognised when received or receivable.  Where grant is received with specific 
performance requirements it is recognised as a liability until the conditions are met and then it is recognised as Turnover. 
 
Social Housing and other government grants 
Where developments have been financed wholly or partly by social housing and other grants, the amount of the grant 
received has been included as deferred income and recognised in Turnover over the estimated useful life of the 
associated asset structure (not land), under the accruals model.  SHG received for items of cost written off in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income Account is included as part of turnover. 
 
When Social Housing Grant (SHG) in respect of housing properties in the course of construction exceeds the total cost to 
date of those housing properties, the excess is shown as a current liability. 
 
SHG must be recycled by the Group under certain conditions, if a property is sold, or if another relevant event takes 
place.  In these cases, the SHG can be used for projects approved by the Homes and Communities Agency and Greater 
London Authority.  However, SHG may have to be repaid if certain conditions are not met.  If grant is not required to be 
recycled or repaid, any unamortised grant is recognised as Turnover.  In certain circumstances, SHG may be repayable, 
and, in that event, is a subordinated unsecured repayable debt. 
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Recycling of Capital Grant 
Where Social Housing Grant is recycled, as described above, SHG is credited to a fund which appears as a creditor until 
used to fund the acquisition of new properties, where recycled grant is known to be repayable it is shown as a creditor 
within one year. 
 
Holiday pay accrual 
A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay entitlement which has accrued at the balance sheet date 
and carried forward to future periods.  This is measured at the undiscounted salary cost of the future holiday entitlement 
so accrued at the balance sheet date. 
 
Reserves 

Any income that is restricted as to use is transferred to a restricted fund and transfers are made to reflect the use of the 

funds in the year.  Where restricted funds are used to acquire assets and the restrictions continue to apply to the 

proceeds from any subsequent disposal of the assets, the funds continue to be recorded as restricted. 

The nature and purpose of each fund is explained further in the notes to the financial statements.  

Restricted grants 

Where grants are received for restricted purposes they are only separately identified in the income and expenditure 

account if material to the Association as a whole.  Smaller grants are identified and their restricted grant transactions 

summarised in a separate Note to the Accounts. 

Operating leases 

Rental payments made under operating leases are charged to expenditure on a straight-line basis over the life of the 

lease. 

Homes managed on behalf of others 

The Association reflects the income and expenditure of homes that it manages on behalf of other owners in its own 

income and expenditure account as, in accordance with the management agreement, the Association takes on the risks 

and rewards of the letting activities. 

Agreements to improve existing properties 
Where the PRP has entered into agreements to purchase property from a third party and subsequently enters into a sub-
contracting agreement to carry out improvement works to the properties, the related assets and liabilities are shown at 
gross values unless the right of net settlement exists. 
 
Retirement benefits 
The cost of providing retirement pensions and related benefits is charged to management expenses over the periods 
benefiting from the employees’ services.   
 
The disclosures in the accounts follow the requirements of Section 28 of FRS 102 in relation to multi-employer funded 
schemes in which the Group has a participating interest. 
 
Contributions payable under an agreement with SHPS to fund past deficits are recognised as a liability in the Group’s 
financial statements calculated by the repayments known, discounted to the net present value at the year ended using a 
market rate discount factor of 3.02% at 31 March 2014, 1.92% at 31 March 2015 and 2.06% at 31 March 2016. The 
unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the Statements of Comprehensive Income in the period 
incurred. 
 
Contributions payable under an agreement with The Growth Plan to fund past deficits are recognised as a liability in the 
Group’s financial statements calculated by the repayments known, discounted to the net present value at the year ended 
using a market rate discount factor of 2.82% at 31 March 2014, 1.74% at 31 March 2015 and 2.07% at 31 March 2016. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the Statements of Comprehensive Income in the period 
incurred. 
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Revaluation Reserve 
The revaluation reserve represents the difference on transition between the fair value of social housing properties and 
other assets and the historical cost carrying value, where deemed cost transitional relief was taken. 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss immediately. 
 
The following financial instruments are assessed individually for impairment: 
(a) All equity instruments regardless of significance; and 
(b) Other financial assets that are individually significant. 
 
Other financial instruments are assessed for impairment either individually or grouped on the basis of similar credit risk 
characteristics. 
 
An impairment loss is measured as follows on the following instruments measured at cost or amortised cost: 
(a) For an instrument measured at amortised cost, the impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 
interest rate. 
(b) For an instrument measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the entity would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the 
reporting date. 
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed either 
directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal cannot result in a carrying amount (net of any allowance 
account) which exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been recognised. 
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are made to recognise liabilities arising from onerous terms of past contractual arrangements. 
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2(a).  Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus 
 

    2016     

Group     
Turnover 

 
£’000 

  
Operating 

costs 
£’000 

  
Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

£’000 
         
         
Income and Expenditure from Property 
Sales 

        

 Sale of 1
st
 Tranche Shared Ownership 

Properties 
 
Income and Expenditure from Social 
Housing Letting Activities (note 3) 

   2,969  (3,005)  (36) 

Housing Accommodation    18,281  (16,940)  1,341 

         
Other Income and Expenditure from 
Social housing Activities 

        

 Support    8,546  (8,992)  (446) 

 Development Activities    -  (503)  (503) 

 Other    95  (121)  (26) 

         
Non Social Housing Activities         

Job Placement Activities    2,614  (2,267)  347 

Support    4,592  (4,581)  11 

         
Total    37,097  (36,409)  688 

        
        
    2015   

     
£’000 

     
£’000 

  
£’000 

        
        
Income and Expenditure from Property 
Sales 

       

 Sale of 1
st
 Tranche Shared Ownership 

Properties 

   2,255 (2,294)  (39) 

        
Income and Expenditure from Social 
Housing Letting Activities (note 3) 

       

 Housing Accommodation     17,832 (15,738)  2,094 
        
Other Income and Expenditure from 
Social Housing Activities 

       

Support    9,647 (9,783)  (136) 
Development Activities    - (681)  (681) 
Other    103 (119)  (16) 
        
Non Social Housing Activities        
 Job Placement Activities    3,119 (2,984)  135 
    Support    4,505 (4,785)  (280) 

        
Total    37,461 (36,384)  1,077 
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2(b).  Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus 
 

    2016 

Association     
Turnover 

£’000 

 
Operating 

costs 
£’000 

 
Surplus 
(deficit) 

£’000 
Income and expenditure from Property 
Sales 

      

Sale of 1
st
 Trance Shared Ownership 

Properties 

   2,969 (3,005) (36) 

       
Income and expenditure from Social 
Housing Letting Activities (note 3) 
below 

      

 Housing Accommodation    18,281 (16,940) 1,341 

        
Other Income and expenditures from 
Social Housing Activities 

      

 Support    8,546 (8,992) (446) 

 Development Activities    - (503) (503) 

 Other    95 (121) (26) 

       
Non Social Housing Activities       

Job Placement Activities    2,614 (2,267) 347 

       

       
Total    32,505 (31,828) 677 

       

       

    2015 

     
£’000 

 
£’000 

 
£’000 

Income and expenditure from Property 
Sales 

      

Sale of 1
st
 Tranche Shared Ownership 

Properties 

   2,255 (2,294) (39) 

       
Income and expenditure from Social 
Housing Letting Activities (note 3) 

      

 Housing Accommodation    17,832 (15,738) 2,094 
        
Other Income and expenditures from 
Social Housing Activities 

      

 Support    9,647 (9,783) (136) 
 Development Activities    - (681) (681) 
 Other    103 (119) (16) 
       
Non Social Housing Activities       
 Job Placement Activities    3,119 (2,984) 135 

        
Total    32,956 (31,599) 1,357 

 
An additional £817,000 of pension costs have been included in housing management costs for 2015/2016 arising from 
the revised method of accounting for pension deficit contributions under FRS 102. 
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3(a).  Turnover and operating expenditure from social housing activities 
 

 
 
 
Group and Association 

Supported 
Housing 

£’000 

Registered 
Homes 

£’000 

Shared 
Ownership 

£’000 

Total 
2016 

£’000 

Total 
2015 
£’000 

Income       
Rent receivable  6,410 - 1,463 7,873 7,474 
Service charge income 3,884 - 2,140 6,024 5,488 
Amortised government grants 961 51 556 1,568 1,542 
Registered Homes  2,281 - 2,281 2,624 
Housing management fees 535 - - 535 700 

      
Rents and Charges receivable 11,790 2,332 4,159 18,281 17,828 
Expenditure      
Housing Management (3,870) (15) (1,109) (4,994) (3,498) 
Service charge costs (3,461) (192) (91) (3,744) (3,768) 
Routine maintenance (1,041) (135) (451) (1,627) (2,685) 
Planned maintenance (982) (50) (867) (1,899) (1,213) 
Bad debts (140) 6 (80) (214) (124) 
Depreciation on Housing Properties (1,634) (75) (552) (2,261) (2,086) 
Care and Support Costs - (2,201) - (2,201) (2,360) 

      
Total Expenditure        (11,128) (2,662) (3,150) (16,940) (15,734) 

 
Surplus / (Deficit) 

662 (330) 1,009 1,341 2,094 

 
Losses from voids 

 
863 

 
177 

 
- 

    
1,040 

 
  802 

 
4.  Accommodation owned, managed and in development  

 

Group and Association 
   2016 

No. of units 
2015 

No. of units 
    Owned  Managed  Owned Managed 
Social Housing        
 Under development at end of year:        
 Supported housing    39 - 43 - 
 Low-cost home ownership    6 - 10 - 
Under management at end of year:        
 General needs housing    4 - 4 - 
 Supported housing     1,509 75 1,437 69 
 Low-cost home ownership    572 - 569 - 
 Residential Care Homes    130 9 189 9 

    2,260 84 2,252 78 

 
 

5.  Group and Association  
Accommodation managed by others  

 The PRP owns property managed by other bodies. 
 

    2016 
No. of properties 

2015 
No. of properties 

Supported housing     31 32 
Residential care homes    48 48 
      

    79 80 
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6.  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (fixed assets)  
 

  Group 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Total 
2016 

£’000 

Total 
2015 
£’000 

Proceeds of sales  1,990 1,538 
Less: Costs of sales  (1,615) (1,517) 

    

Surplus  375 21 

    
Capital grant recycled (Note 19)  796 223 

 
None of the properties sold were property developed for other PRP’s or staircasing sales of shared ownership 
properties 

 
 

7.  Interest and financing costs  
 

   Group Association 

   2016 
£’000 

2015  
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015  
£’000 

Deferred benefit pension charge   70 114 70 114 
On loans wholly or partly repayable in 
more than five years 

  485 500 485 500 

   555 614 555 614 

       
 

8.  Surplus on ordinary activities  
 

     Group Association 

 2016 
£’000 

2015  
£’000 

 2016       
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

The operating surplus is stated after charging:-     
     
External auditors remuneration (excluding VAT):     
 Audit of the group financial statements* 26 23 21 18 
     
Operating lease rentals:     
- Land and buildings 1,321 1,223 1,013 941 
- Motor vehicles 
- Office equipment 

20 
31 

36 
31 

20 
28 

36 
28 

     
Depreciation of housing properties 2,094 1,904 2,094 1,898 
Depreciation of other fixed assets 815 736 788 687 
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9.  Directors’ remuneration  
 
 

 2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by non-executive Directors and 
former non-executive directors 

 
24 10 

 
 

   

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by executive Directors and 
former executive directors 

 
404 610 

 
 

   

The emoluments paid to the highest paid Director excluding pension contributions  104  99 

 
 

   

The aggregate amount of any consideration payable to or receivable by third 
parties for making available the services of a Director 

 
326  84 

 
 

   

The aggregate amount of any consideration payable to Directors for loss of office   29  86 

    
    

 

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the pension scheme.  The pension scheme is a final salary 
scheme funded by annual contributions by the employer and employee.  No enhanced or special terms apply.  
There are no additional pension arrangements.  A contribution by the PRP of £8,427 (2015: £6,807) was paid in 
addition to the personal contributions of the Chief Executive. 
 
Directors (key management personnel) are defined as members of the Board, the Chief Executive and any other 
person who is a member of the Senior Management Team or its equivalent. 

 
 

10.  Employee information  
   Group Association 

   2016 
No. 

2015 
No. 

2016 
No. 

2015 
No. 

The average number of persons employed 
during the year expressed in full time 
equivalents (35 hours per week) was: 

      

Office staff   87 100 73 77 
Scheme based staff   503 505 378 385 
Employment support activities   19 25 19   25 

   609 630 470 487 

       
   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Staff costs        
Wages and salaries   14,160 14,595 11,136 11,530 
Social Security costs   1,083 1,127 859 902 
Other pension costs   1,971 866  1,874 787      

       
   17,214 16,588 13,869 13,219 

       
   Group Association 

   2016 2015 2016 2015 
Aggregate number of full time equivalent 
staff whose remuneration exceeded 
£60,000 in the period: 

  No. No. No. No. 

£70,000 - £80,000   3 4 2 3 
£80,000 - £90,000   - 1 - 1 
£90,000 - £100,000    - 3 - 3 
£100,000 - £110,000   1 - 1 - 
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11.  The Pensions Trust – Social Housing Pension Scheme 
 
 

The association participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-

associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.  

It is not possible for the association to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a 

defined benefit scheme. Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme. 

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlines in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 

December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial 

Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out for the framework for funding defined benefit 

occupational pension schemes in the UK. 

The scheme is classified as a ‘last-man standing arrangement’. Therefore the association is potentially liable for 

other participating employers’ obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit 

following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the 

scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme. 

A Full Actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. The 

Actuarial valuation was certified on 23 November 2015 and showed assets of £3,123m, liabilities of £4,446m and 

a deficit of £1,323m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees and the participating employers have agreed 

that additional contributions will be paid, in combination from all employers, to the scheme as follows: 

 

Deficit contributions 

Tier 1 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2020: 

£40.6m per annum 
Payable monthly and increasing  by 4.7% each year 

on 1
st
 April 

Tier 2 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2023: 

£28.6m per annum 
Payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year 

on 1
st
 April 

Tier 3 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2026: 

£32.7m per annum 
Payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year 

on 1
st
 April 

Tier 4 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2026 

£31.7m per annum 
Payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year 

on 1
st
 April 

 

Note that the scheme’s previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2011: this 

valuation was certified on 17 December 2012 and showed assets of £2,062m, liabilities of £3,097m and a deficit 

of £1,035m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, payments consisted of the Tier 1, 2 and 3 deficit contributions. 

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement the 

Association recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit 

reduction contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated 

using the discount rate detailed in these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a 

financial cost. 
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PRESENT VALUES OF PROVISION 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

31 March 
2014 

 
£’000 £’000 £’000 

Present value of provision 4,845 3,757 3,873 

 

 

RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING PROVISIONS 

 Year 
 Ended 

Year 
 Ended 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Provision at the start of period 3,757 3,873 

Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) 68 110 

Deficit contribution paid (424) (407) 

Remeasurements – impact of any change in assumptions (30) 180 

Remeasurements – amendments to the contribution schedule 1,474 - 

Provision at the end of period 4,845 3,757 

 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE IMPACT 

 Year 
Ended 

Year 
 Ended 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Interest expense 68 110 

Remeasurements – impact of any change in assumptions (30) 180 

Remeasurements – amendments to the contribution schedule 1,474 - 
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ASSUMPTIONS 

 
31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2014 

 
% Per 

Annum 
% Per 

Annum 
% Per 

Annum 

Rate of discount 2.06 1.92 3.02 

 

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future 

recovery plan contributions due, would give you the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to 

discount the same recovery plan contributions. 

The following schedule details the deficit contributions agreed between the company and the scheme at each year end 

period. 

 

DEFICIT CONTRIBUTIONS SCHEDULE 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 £’000 £’000 

Year 1 576 424 

Year 2 598 441 

Year 3 621 460 

Year 4 646 479 

Year 5  565 498 

Year 6 479 414 

Year 7  496 323 

Year 8 428 335 

Year 9 355 263 

Year 10 366 185 

Year 11 188 190 

Year 12  - 98 

 

The Association must recognise a liability measured as the present value of the contributions payable that arise from the 

deficit recovery agreement and the resulting expense in the income and expenditure account i.e. the unwinding of the 

discount rate as finance cost in the period in which it arises. 

It is these contributions that have been used to derive the company’s balance sheet liability. 
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SCHEME: The Pensions Trust – The Growth Plan  

The association participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 1,300 non-

associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.  

It is not possible for the association to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined 

benefit scheme. Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme. 

The scheme is classified as a ‘last-man standing arrangement’. Therefore the company is potentially liable for other 

participating employers’ obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following 

withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an 

annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme. 

A Full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2011. This actuarial valuation showed assets 

of £780m, Liabilities of £928m and a deficit of £148m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees and the participating 

employers have agreed that additional contributions will be paid to the scheme as follows: 

 

Deficit contributions 

From April 2013 to March 2023: 
£13.9m per annum 

Payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1
st
 April 

 

A Full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2014. This valuation showed assets of £793m, 

Liabilities of £970m and a deficit of £177m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustee has asked the participating 

employers to pay additional contributions to the scheme as follows: 

Deficit contributions 

From April 2016 to 30 September 2025:: 
£12,945,440 per annum 

Payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1
st
 April 

From April 2016 to 30 September 2028: 
£54,560 per annum 

Payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1
st
 April 

 

The recovery plan contributions are allocated to each participating employer in line with their estimated share of the 

Series 1 and Series 2 scheme liabilities. 

 

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the association has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement the company 

recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction 

contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount 

rate detailed in these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a financial cost. 

 

PRESENT VALUES OF PROVISION 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

31 March 
2014 

 
£’000 £’000 £’000 

Present value of provision 113 93 97 
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RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING PROVISIONS 

 Year 
 Ended 

Year 
 Ended 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Provision at the start of period 93 97 

Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) 2 3 

Deficit contribution paid (11) (11) 

Remeasurements – impact of any change in assumptions (2) 4 

Remeasurements – amendments to the contribution schedule 32 - 

Provision at the end of period 113 93 

 

 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE IMPACT 

 Year 
Ended 

Year 
 Ended 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 £’000 £’000 

Interest expense 2 3 

Remeasurements – impact of any change in assumptions (2) 4 

Remeasurements – amendments to the contribution schedule 32 - 

 

 

ASSUMPTIONS 

 
31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2014 

 
% Per 

Annum 
% Per 

Annum 
% Per 

Annum 

Rate of discount 2.07 1.74 2.82 

 

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future 

recovery plan contributions due, would give you the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to 

discount the same recovery plan contributions. 

The following schedule details the deficit contributions agreed between the company and the scheme at each year end 

period. 
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DEFICIT CONTRIBUTIONS SCHEDULE 

Year Ended 
31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 £’000 £’000 

Year 1 12 11 

Year 2 12 12 

Year 3 12 12 

Year 4 13 12 

Year 5  13 13 

Year 6 13 13 

Year 7  14 13 

Year 8 14 14 

Year 9 15 - 

Year 10 8 - 

 

The Association must recognise a liability measured as the present value of the contributions payable that arise from the 

deficit recovery agreement and the resulting expense in the income and expenditure account i.e. the unwinding of the 

discount rate as finance cost in the period in which it arises. 

It is these contributions that have been used to derive the company’s balance sheet liability. 

KeyRing also participates in the Growth Plan scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 1,300 

non-associated employers.  

KeyRing’s deficit contributions in 2016/17 will be under £100 per annum. 

In addition KeyRing has two active members of staff who are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(LGPS). Under this scheme a cessation debt will trigger at the end of the contract or when the last active member leaves 

if earlier. This cessation debt will be calculated on the funding basis. All past service benefits of the transfers will be 

included in this calculation.  We believe that if KeyRing were to trigger the cessation debt in the near future the cessation 

debt would be less than £10,000.  
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12(a)  Tangible fixed assets  
 ----------------------- Housing Properties ------------------ 

 
------------------ Other fixed assets ------------------ 

 
 
 
 
Group 

 
Social  

Housing 
Properties  
for Letting 
Completed 

£’000 

 
Social 

Housing 
Properties for 
letting under 
Construction 

£’000 

 
Low cost  

home 
ownership 
Properties 
completed 

£’000 

Low cost  
home 

ownership 
properties 

under 
construction 

£’000 

 
 
 

Total  
Housing 

Properties 
£’000 

 
 
 
 

Freehold  
Property  

£’000 

 
 
 
 

 Leasehold 
Property  

£’000 

 
 
 

Furniture 
and office 

equipment 
£’000 

 
 
 
 

Total  
fixed assets  

£’000 
Cost          
 At start of the year 79,587 2,240 32,388 5 114,220 4,643 546 5,126 124,535 
 Additions to properties acquired - 3,888 - 1,842 5,730 - - 404 6,134 
 Works to existing properties 408 - 19 - 427 - - - 427 
 Schemes completed 5,295 (5,295) 1,844 (1,844) - - - - - 
 Disposals (820) - (754) - (1,574) - - (190) (1,764) 
 Transfers to investment property - - - - - (1,155) - - (1,155) 
 At end of the year 84,470 833 33,497 3 118,803 3,488 546 5,340 128,177 

          
Depreciation and impairment          
 At start of the year (15,135) - (3,430) - (18,565) (886) (127) (4,370) (23,948) 
 Charge for the year (1,540) - (554) - (2,094) (71) (193) (553) (2,911) 
 Disposals 283  101  384 140 - 186 710 
At end of the year (16,392) - (3,883) - (20,275) (817) (320) (4,737) (26,149) 

          

Net book value at the end of the year 68,078 833 29,614 3 98,528 2,671 226 603 102,028 

          

Net book value at the start of the year 64,452 2,240 28,958 5 95,655 3,757 419 756 100,587 

 
 
Housing Properties comprise: 

    
    

2016 
£’000 

 
2015 
£’000 

 Freeholds        88,904 85,841 
 Long leaseholds        9,624 9,813 
        98,528 95,654 

          
Cost of properties includes £11,000 (2015:.£55,766) for direct administrative costs capitalised during  the year      
        2016 2015 
Works to existing properties in the year:        £’000 £’000 
Improvement works capitalised        67 199 
Components capitalised        360 519 
Amounts charged to expenditure        3,526 3,898 
        3,953 4,616 
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12(b).  Tangible fixed assets  
 ----------------------- Housing Properties ------------------ 

 
------------------ Other fixed assets ------------------ 

 
 
 
 
Association 

 
Social  

Housing 
Properties  
for Letting 
Completed 

£’000 

Social 
Housing 

Properties 
for letting 

under 
Construction 

£’000 

 
Low cost  

home 
ownership 
Properties 
completed 

£’000 

Low cost  
home 

ownership 
properties 

under 
construction 

£’000 

 
 
 

Total  
Housing 

Properties 
£’000 

 
 
 
 

Freehold  
Properties  

£’000 

 
 
 
 

 Leasehold 
Property  

£’000 

 
 
 

Furniture 
and office 

equipment 
£’000 

 
 
 
 

Total  
fixed assets  

£’000 
Cost          
 At start of the year 79,587 2,240 32,388 5 114,220 3,352 387 4,968 122,927 
 Additions to properties acquired - 3,888 - 1,842 5,730 - - 404 6,134 
 Works to existing properties 408 - 19 - 427 - - - 427 
 Schemes completed 5,295 (5,295) 1,844 (1,844) - - - - - 
 Disposals (820) - (754) - (1,574) -  (76) (1,650) 
 At end of the year 84,470 833 33,497 3 118,803 3,352 387 5,296 127,838 

          
Depreciation and impairment          
 At start of the year (15,135) - (3,430) - (18,565) (745) (123) (4,227) (23,660) 
 Charge for the year (1,540) - (554) - (2,094) (63) (189) (536) (2,882) 
 Disposals 283 - 101 - 384 - - 69 453 
At end of the year (16,392) - (3,883) - (20,275) (808) (312) (4,694) (26,089) 

          
Net book value at the end of the year 68,078 833 29,614 3 98,528 2,544 75 602 101,749 

          
 
Net book value at the start of the year 

64,452 2,240 28,958 5 95,655 2,607 264 741 99,267 

          
Housing Properties comprises:        2016 

£’000 
2015 
£’000 

 Freehold land and buildings        88,904 85,841 
 Long leasehold land and buildings        9,624 9,813 
        98,528 95,654 

Cost of properties includes £11,000 (2015:.£55,766) for direct administrative costs capitalised during  the year    
        2016 2015 
Works to existing properties in the year:         £’000 £’000 
Improvement works capitalised        67 199 
Components capitalised        360 519 
Amounts charged to expenditure        3,526 3,898 
    3,953 4,616 
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13(a).  Investment properties held for letting 
 
   Group Association 
 
 

  2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

At start of year   - - - - 
Reclassified from tangible fixed assets   1,016 - - - 
Gain/(loss) from adjustment in value   1,984 - - - 

At end of year   3,000 - - - 

       

 
Investment properties were valued at 31 March 2016 by Currells, external valuers. The property was valued on 
an open market basis.  
 

13(b).  Fixed asset investments 
 

Group Companies 
The group comprises the following entities, all registered in England: 
 
Name Incorporation and 

ownership 
Regulated/ non-
regulated 

Nature of Businesses 

KeyRing Living Support 
Networks 

Company – 100% Non-Regulated Charity 

 
KeyRing Living Support Networks joined Advance group on 1 April 2014. Advance paid no consideration to the 
members of KeyRing when KeyRing joined the group. 

 
 

14. Trade and other debtors 
   Group Association 
 
 

  2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Rent and service charge arrears   1,117 940 1,117 940 
Less: provision for bad debts   (619) (453) (619) (453) 

   498 487 498 487 
Social Housing Grant receivable   441 981 441 981 
Other debtors   2,576 2,871 2,121 2,242 
Prepayments and accrued income   640 677 505 585 
Shared Owner property sales   - 94 - 94 
Balances owed by group company   - - 62 - 

   4,155 5,110 3,627 4,389 

 
Debtors are all due within one year 

      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 



Advance Housing and Support Limited 

Page 48 of 53 

 
 

 
 
15. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

 
   Group Association 

 
 

  2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Loans and overdrafts (Note 21b)   661 569 661 569 
Trade creditors   753 1,162 723 1.100 
Social Housing Grant received in 
advance 

  
791 1,211 791 1.211 

Rents and service charges paid in 
advance 

  
501 538 501 538 

Service charge balances held on behalf 
of leaseholders  

  
2,251 1,960 2,251 1.960 

Other taxation and social security 
payable 

  
308 406 250 341 

Accruals and deferred income   3,731 3,005 3,505 2.961 
SHPS pension agreement plan (Note 12)   588 435 588 435 
Deferred Capital Grant (Note 23)   1,668 1,565 1,668 1,565 
Recycled Capital Grant Fund (Note 24)   361 533 361 533 
Other creditors   323 463 259 408 

   11,936 11,847 11,558 11,621 

       

16. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 
 

   Group Association 

 
 

  2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Loans (Note 17)   11,724 12,522 11,724 12,522 
Deferred Capital Grant (Note 18)   68,975 67,753 68,975 67,753 
Recycled capital grant fund (Note 19)   1,006 464 1,006 464 
SHPS pension agreement plan (Note 11)   4,370 3,415 4,370 3,415 

   86,075 84,154 86,075 84,154 

 

17. Debt analysis 
 

   Group Association 

   2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Loans repayable by instalments:       
Within one year   661 569 661 569 
In one year or more but less than two years   682 612 682 612 
In two years or more and less than five 
years 

  
2,107 1,937 2,107 1,937 

In five years or more   6,515 7,453 6,515 7,453 
       
Loans not repayable by instalments:       
In five years or more   2,420 2,520 2,420 2,520 

Total loans   12,385 13,091 12,385 13,091 

 

All loans are secured by legal charges on specific properties. The loans repayable by instalments are repayable 
quarterly at varying rates of interest and are due to be repaid in 2026, 2035 and 2044. The loans not repayable 
by instalments do not bear interest and are only repayable upon disposal of a secured property. 

 

The interest rate profile of the PRP at 31 March 2016 was: 
 
 

   
 

Total 
£’000 

 
Variable 

Rate 
£’000 

 
Fixed 

rate  
£’000 

Weighted 
Average 

rate  
% 

Weighted 
average 

term 
Years 

Instalment loans  9,965 3,153 6,812 4.77 15 
Non-instalments loans  2,420 - 2,420 0.00 n/a 

  12,385 3,153 9,232 3.84  
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18. Deferred capital grant 

 
   Group Association 

   2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

At start of the year   69,318 68,680 69,318 68,680 
Grant received in the year   3,522 3,372 3,522 3,372 
Released to income in the year   (1,569) (1,545) (1,569) (1,545) 
Recycled/ repaid in the year   (628) (1,189) (628) (1,189) 

At the end of the year   70,643 69,318 70,643 69,319 

 
   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Amount due to be released < 1 year   1,668 1,565 1,668 1,565 
Amount due to be released > 1 year   68,975 67,753 68,975 67,753 

   70,643 69,318 70,643 69,318 

 
 

 19. Recycled capital grant fund 
 
     2016 

£’000 
2015 
£’000 

At the start of the year     997 1,755 
Inputs: Grants recycled     796 223 
 Interest accrued     6 7 
 Transfers from other PRPs     - - 
Recycled to provide new rented houses     (432) (988) 
       

At the end of the year     1,367 997 

Amount three years or older where 
repayment may be required 

    
- - 

 
All recycled capital grant funds relate to funds originally received from the Homes and Communities Agency. 
 
The recycled capital grant fund must be used in full by the following dates:  
 

     2016 2015 
     £’000 £’000 
Within one year     335 533 
Within one to two years     230 233 
Within two to three years     802 232 

 

 20. Non-equity share capital 
 
     2016 

£ 
2015 

£ 
Group and Association       
Allotted Issued and Fully Paid       
       
At the start of the year     22 21 
Issued during the year     - 1 

     22 22 

At the end of the year       

 
The par value of each share is £1. The shares do not have a right to any dividend or distribution in a winding-up, 
and are not redeemable.  Each share has full voting rights. All shares are fully paid. 
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21 Analysis of movements in restricted fund 

 
Opening 
Balance 

1 April 2015 
Incoming 

resources 
Outgoing 

Resources 
Interfund 
Transfers 

Closing 
Balance 

31 March 
2016 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
      
Learning Disability Training - 25 (23) (2) - 
Comic Relief 7 88 (74) 9 30 
Self Advocacy 19 65 (84) - - 
Oldham Therapeutic 7 87 (94) - - 

Total 33 265 (275) 7 30 

 
All funds are held as liquid resources. 

 
Learning Disability training covers: Learning Disability project funded by the Prison Reform Trust to deliver adult staff 
learning disability awareness training to members of staff in adult prisons in England & Wales, CJS – a package of 
awareness raising tools that promote the health, social-care and communication needs of offenders with learning disabilities 
in the criminal justice system, Prison Toolkit – a funding for the production of learning disability health awareness resource 
for healthcare centres and. WFJ Group meeting – is a service user reference group of people with Learning Disabilities who 
have been in the Criminal Justice system as offenders or suspects. 

 
Comic Relief funds are aimed at training criminal justice staff on LD & autism, providing ‘quick wins’ to help front line staff 
and managers, informing national policy through the working for justice service group and signposting CJS staff to 
appropriate support and resources via an email help line  
 
Self Advocacy is to improve the services and opportunities there are for people with learning disabilities in North Yorkshire. 

 
Oldham Therapeutic works with people who have had a difficulty with substances and are now abstinent and are working 
towards remaining to be so. 
 

22. Capital commitments 
  

Group and Association     2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Capital expenditure that has been 
contracted for but has not been provided 
for in the financial statements 

    
2,343 2,253 

Capital expenditure that has been 
authorised by the Board but has not yet 
been contracted for 

    
18,447 27,670 

     20,790 29,923 

The PRP expects these commitments to 
be financed with: 

    
  

Social Housing Grant     5,095 11,000 
Proceeds from the sales of properties     8,653 9,100 
Cash facilities     7,042 9,823 

     20,790 29,923 

 

The above figures include the full cost of shared ownership properties contracted for. 
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23. Operating leases 

 

The PRP holds properties and office equipment under non-cancellable operating leases.  At the end of the year the 
PRP had commitments of future minimum lease payments as follows:- 
 
   Group Association 

   2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Land and buildings:       
In one year or more but less than two years   1,053 1,054 1,053 1,054 
In two years or more and less than five years   251 230 220 203 
In five years or more   153 153 153 153 
       
Others:       
In one year or more but less than two years   97 117 97 117 
In two years or more and less than five years   23 65 21 61 

       

 

The lease agreements do not include any contingent rent or restrictions. 
 
 

24. Grant and financial assistance 
 

Group and Association     2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

The total accumulated government grant and financial assistance 
received or receivable at 31 March: 

  
87,903 85,614 

Held as deferred capital grant     70,639 69,538 
Recognised as income in Statement of Comprehensive Income   17,264 16,076 

 
25. Related parties 
 

Advance Housing and Support Limited is the parent entity in the Group and ultimate controlling party.  
  

The following are related parties: 
 

 The Board has tenant members who hold tenancy agreements on normal terms and cannot use their 
position to their advantage.  Rent charged to the Tenant Board member was £7,239 (2015: £7,092).  There 
are no arrears on their tenancies at the reporting period end (2015: £Nil). 

 Transactions with key management personnel and their close family, (including compensation paid). 
 
Related party balances are not secured. 
 
The following transactions with KeyRing, a non–registered subsidiary have occurred: 
 
Charge from Advance to KeyRing in respect of ledger accounting and payroll services, financial and 
management accounting and treasury management was £73,000 (2015: £nil). 
 
Charge from Advance to KeyRing in respect of the office space occupied by KeyRing at Dalston Lane, London 
was £26,000 (2015: £nil). 
 
Charge from KeyRing to Advance respect of business development services was £15,000 (2015: £30,000). 

 
Charge from KeyRing to Advance respect of customer engagement services was £54,000 (2015: £nil). 
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26. First time adoption of FRS 102 

On adoption of FRS 102 the Group and Association have restated the comparatives; the impact on reserves is 
as follows: 
 
Group  
 

 
 

Note 

 Reserves  
as at  

transition date  
1 Apr 2014 

£’000 

 
Surplus 

Year ended  
31 Mar 2015 

£’000 

 
Reserves  

as at  
31 Mar 2015 

£’000 
      
As previously stated under former UK 
GAAP 

  21,246 3,090 24,336 

Transitional adjustments      

Increase in depreciation of housing 
properties 

a  (12,554) (1,244) (13,798) 

Increase in amortisation of grants relating 
to housing properties 

 
b 

 14,080 1,468 15,548 

Inclusion of SHPS pension deficit 
payment liability  

 
d 

 (3,970) 120 (3,850) 

Inclusion of Holiday Pay accrual   - (34) (34) 

As stated in accordance with FRS102   18,802 3,400 22,202 

 
Association 
 

 
 

Note 

 Reserves  
as at  

transition date  
1 Apr 2014 

£’000 

 
Surplus 

Year ended  
31 Mar 2015 

£’000 

 
Reserves  

as at  
31 Mar 2015 

£’000 
      
As previously stated under former UK 
GAAP 

  21,246 486 21,732 

Transitional adjustments      

Increase in depreciation of housing 
properties 

a  (12,554) (1,244) (13,798) 

Increase in amortisation of grants relating 
to housing properties 

 
b 

 14,080 1,488 15,548 

Inclusion of SHPS pension deficit 
payment liability  

 
c 

 (3,970) 120 (3,850) 

As stated in accordance with FRS102   18,802 830 19,632 

      

Explanation of changes to previously reported profit and equity: 

a. FRS102 requires that capital grant previously deducted from the cost of fixed assets, is treated as creditors 

where the fixed assets are carried at cost.  The effect compared to current UK GAAP is an increase to the 

carrying cost of housing properties resulting in an increase in the depreciation at transition of £12,552,000 

and a decrease in the surplus for the year ended 31 March 2015 of £12,552,000. 

 

b. FRS102 requires that government capital grant previously deducted from the carrying cost of housing 

properties is treated as a deferred capital grant creditor and released to the statement of comprehensive 

income over the useful life of the associated assets.  The effect compared to current UK GAAP is an 

increase in income recognised on transition of £14,911,000, and £14,911,000 increase in surplus for the 

year ended 31 March 2015. 

 

c. FRS102 requires that a liability is recognised for the contributions that arise from an agreement to fund a 
deficit in a multi-employer pension scheme.  The effect is that a liability for the SHPS payment plan has 
been recognised at the present value of the contributions payable using the discount rate specified in note 
11.  This has resulted in a decrease in reserves of £3,970,000 at transition and a decrease in the surplus in 
the year ended 31 March 2015 of £3,970,000. 
 

d. FRS102 requires that the cost of unused entitlement and short term employee benefits is measured and 
recognised in the reporting period.  The effect is that unused holiday entitlement has now been recognised 
as an accrual at the reporting period date.  This arose in KeyRing which joined the Group after the transition 
date. The inclusion of the liability has resulted in a decrease in the surplus for the year ended 31 March 
2016 of £34,000. 
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